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The Morton House is located just outside the business section of downtown Lexington in 
what is now Duncan Park on the northeast corner of Limestone and Fifth Streets 
diagonally across from Rose Hill (listed on the National Register, December 30, 1974). 
Although it is surrounded on all sides by an older declining neighborhood, the integrity 
of the site the character and beauty of the house is aided by the spacious grounds 
which encompass the park. The structure sits on a small knoll well back from the 
street with numerous large trees gracing the frontage. On the west side of the house is 
a small basketball court and to the rear, a parking area and playground equipment.

The Morton residence is of a modified Federal style and consists of a five-pavilion brick 
house on a one-story plan. The building is unique among early examples of Bluegrass 
houses, according to Kentucky architectural historian Clay Lancaster, in having stucco 
covering the exterior front and side walls. This stuccoed facade is scored to resemble 
stonework with quoins at the corners. Most of the stucco remains today.

The first, third, and fifth masses are crowned with hipped roofs; the second and fourth, 
connectors to the end wings, with saddleback roofs. All are slightly recessed from the 
central block. Originally a balustrade capped the main mass of the roof but it was 
removed some years ago. Attached to the rear of the central block is a portico, 
flat roofed, supported by four columns.

The central block is characterized by an arched entranceway with double doors flanked by 
large Palladian windows. The original sashes, however, have since been removed. 
The connectors are seen with false fan doorways; the end wings by paired rectangular 
windows.

On entering, a second fanlighted door at the rear of the hall leads to the drawing room, 
the largest room in the house, which contains a shallow-curved apsidal recess on the 
west side and opens into the parlor on the south. This large area is divided by huge 
double doors reaching almost to the very high ceiling. A cross-passage behind the 
front rooms on either side of the entrance hall leads through to the end wings, which are 
treated almost as autonomous units.

The original floors are still intact although some woodwork has been changed or 
replaced over the years. There are handsome mid-Victorian marble mantels with 
attractive dogwood pattern detail located in the drawing rooms, but several of the 
smaller rooms contain the original mantels.

In the 1880s alterations were made, including bay windows on the centers of the 
north and south wings; these have recently been removed by the City of Lexington.
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The Morton house, with its tall arched doorway flanked by great Palladian windows, is 
one of the most elegant survivals of early Lexington's town residences. The interesting 
composition bears resemblance to others in the area (Rose Hill, Lewis Manor, the 
Gist-Peck House, and Plancentiaall contain similar elements), but the Morton house is 
unique in its manorial ambitions, no doubt reflecting those of the original owner, "whose 
grand manner and scale of living prompted the townspeople to address him as 'Lord' 
Morton." (Lancaster, p. 61) It can be said to be somewhat representative of the 
geometric phase of architectural design which was to be superseded after 1820 by effects 
gained through the use of classic orders, pediments, and arcades. The hipped roof with 
recess or, as in the case of Rose Hill, advanced wings to the sides of the central mass, 
the facade adorned with attenuated Palladian windows characterize this particular phase 
common to the second decade of the 19th century. The Morton House remains, therefore, 
a distinctive representation of this brief transitional period of freshness and originality 
in traditional design.

The house also has important historical associations. It was built in 1810 by an early 
Lexington resident, one of the most prominent and successful of the city's merchants, 

1\Vglj^m..]^orton. It was later purchased by GM§te_l^.rc^]Lus..Clay, well-known 
firebrand abolitionist, editor of the anti-slavery newspaper The True American, 
legislator, and Minister to Russia (1863-69).

Morton, a native of England, was a successful merchant in Pennsylvania before migrating 
south. In 1787 he came to Lexington, then a burgeoning pioneer western village, and 
remained to see it develop by the turn of the century into the capital of the Bluegrass 
section of Kentucky. From the early 1780s until 1820, the "Athens of the West" was the 
largest and wealthiest city west of the Alleghenies with the exception of the French city 
of New Orleans. Morton, as a merchant, was also to witness Lexington's decline as 
Kentucky's commercial center, to be superseded by its rival, Louisville, strategically 
located on the Ohio River at the Falls.

Morton was to prosper during these early days of the city's growth and expansion. When 
he first arrived in Lexington he opened a general trading store on the southwest corner 
of Main and Upper Streets, and later constructed a half-block of store buildings in 
downtown Lexington. He also operated a tanyard on the corner of Main and Upper 
(now Patterson) Streets. In drawing for the outlets, Morton was awarded the property 
on North Limestone from 5th to 6th Streets, now a part of Duncan Park where the 
Morton House is situated.
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Presently the house, with protective screens on all windows and a fan in one of the 
front Palladian windows, is only a reflection of its once elegant appearance. 
Fortunately, however, the city of Lexington has preserved the building and stabilized 
it against deterioration and does hope one day to restore the house to a condition 
befitting its architectural and historical significance.
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Morton became a prominent Lexingtonian, taking an active interest in the welfare of his 
community. As one contemporary wrote, "Mr, Morton was a liberal and public spirited 
citizen, and was the largest and most active contributor to the building of the first and 
second Episcopal churches, himself and family being members of that Church." His 
generosity also included a donation of $10,000 for the foundation of a city school, which 
was constructed and named for him (Leavy , p. 254).

Morton died in 1836 and his residence, constructed in 1810, was sold in 1838 to Cassius 
Marcellus Clay, well-known for his leadership in abolitionist affairs. While Clay was 
residing at the Morton house, he published the abolitionist newspaper, the True American. 
He was to encounter considerable opposition, however, among the local citizenry which 
prompted him to install cannons and iron pikes at his Mill Street office. He did gain 
sufficient support to get elected as a Whig to the State Legislature in 1840 (having 
served previously from Madison County, 1835, 1837). Other public offices included an 
appointment by President Abraham Lincoln as Minister to Russia.

Clay owned, in addition to the Morton House, an estate in Richmond, Kentucky (Whitehall, 
listed on the National Register March 11, 1971). He had originally moved from Madison 
County because, as he stated in his memoirs, his family disliked country life. He 
decided on Lexington as a more central place to live. Clay called his Lexington house 
"the most elegant in the city."

Clay returned to White Hall in 1850 and later sold the Morton residence to Dr. Lloyd 
Warfield who owned it until 1873. Henry T. Duncan, a former mayor of Lexington, was 
the next owner and occupant from whom it descended to Lily Duncan Draper. It was 
she who, in 1913, sold the house to the city for park purposes. It is currently used by 
the city of Lexington as a recreation center.



Form No. 1f)-300a 
(iW 10-74)

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR
NATIONAL PARK SERVICE

RECEIVED HAY 1 9 1975 
NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES

INVENTORY -- NOMINATION FORM DATE ENTm°

FOR NFS US£ ONLY

CONTI NUATION SHEET __________ITEM NUMBER 9____PAGE 2_____________________

William ("Lord") Morton House

Connelley, William E. & Coulter, E. M. History of Kentucky, Vol. III. Edited by 
Charles Kerr, Chicago: American Historical Society, 1922, p. 355.

Dunn, C. Frank. Old Houses of Lexington , Vol II, (typed manuscript, Kentucky 
Historical Society), p. 456.

Jarrett, Calvin. "Cassius Marcellus Clay, A Popular Portrait',' Register of the 
Kentucky Historical Society, Vol. 64, pp. 277-292.

Lancaster, Clay. Ante Bellum Houses of the Bluegrass. Lexington: University of 
Kentucky Press, 1961, pp. 61, 62.

Leavy, William A. "A Memoir of Lexington and Its Vicinity." Register of the 
Kentucky Historical Society, Vol. 40, pp. 253-267.

Newcomb, Rexford. Architecture in Old Kentucky. Urbana: University of Illinois 
Press, 1953, pp. 65, 66.

Simpson, Elizabeth. Bluegrass Houses and Their Traditions, Lexington: Transylvania 
Press, 1932.

Staples, Charles R. The History of Pioneer Lexington 1779-1806, Lexington: 
Transylvania Press, 1937, p. 46.



_ ( ^>^^^t<*,. ^-^/L-ifv

*n?«^3zci:-r^ *t
.^%^-Si

SCALE 1:24000
0

3000

0
! . . . , ., .

4000 5000 6000

1

1 MILE

7000 FEET

KILOMHER

CONl'OUR INTERVAL 10 FEET 
DATUM IS MEAN SEA LEVEL

LOCATION OF MORION HOUSE



LOCATION OF MORION HOUSE
NORTH 

0 V,_*S 200

SCALE IN FEET 

MAP 3 of 4



Restoration Drawing of "MQRTQN HOUSE" 

By Clay Lancaster


